CABINET REGENERATION SUB COMMITTEE

THURSDAY, 14 JULY 2016

PRESENT: Councillors Simon Dudley (Chairman), Phillip Bicknell, Samantha Rayner, Derek Wilson, and David Coppinger

Principal Member also in attendance: Councillor Christine Bateson

Officers: Russell O'Keefe, Chris Hilton, Karen Shepherd, Alison Alexander, Rob Stubbs, Mark Shephard, Zareena Ahmed-Shere and Wendy Binmore

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D Evans, Rankin and Saunders

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Wilson declared a personal interest in all items as a member of the Maidenhead Town Partnership Board and the Partnership for the Rejuvenation of Maidenhead

MINUTES

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 28 June 2016 be approved.

THE COUNCIL'S USE OF COMPULSORY PURCHASE POWERS - CHAPEL ARCHES DEVELOPMENT

Members considered using the council's compulsory purchase powers to facilitate the land assembly needed to deliver the final (3rd) phase of Chapel Arches. The report requested the council's support in principle to use its powers of Compulsory Purchase orders (CPO) should they be needed to facilitate the remainder of the land required.

Members noted that the Shanly Group was in possession of all bar two units in the Colonnade. The two tenants were proving difficult in terms of making a decision about leaving the premises. The Shanly Group had requested the council to be on stand-by to use its CPO powers as a last resort. It had been made clear in previous negotiations that the council would, subject to Member decision, be prepared to use its CPO powers. The Shanly Group felt that a more formal process was now required.

It was confirmed that if no CPO was needed, work could start on site in early 2017; the need for CPO could delay the timetable for a year. The timelines were crucial as contractors were already on site working on the first two phases. The Chairman suggested the two tenants in question be advised that if they moved to another premises in the town that had been vacant for 12 months, they could take advantage of business rate relief from the council. The Lead Member for Planning commented that any delay could also affect the Waterways project. It was also confirmed that the Shanly Group was not relying on the council's CPO powers, it had already put alternative locations to the two tenants, to encourage them to make a decision.

It was highlighted to Members that it was common practice for local authorities to use CPO powers in relation to town centre regeneration and large scale development. The Strategic Director commented that the council would be using its CPO powers, if needed, to facilitate the vision for the town centre and support the redevelopment. Unless the two tenants moved, the council could not ensure the redevelopment could go ahead including the homes, shops and jobs that would be provided for the town.

It was noted that one of the two tenants was operating a profitable business and was concerned that they should not leave until the very last moment. The proposal, if agreed, would provide certainty that they would have to move at a certain point. The second tenant had a general reluctance to move, possibly due to a lack of understanding of the process.

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That Cabinet Regeneration Sub Committee:

- i. Approves its support, in principle, to using compulsory purchase powers to facilitate the land assembly needed to deliver the final phase of Chapel Arches.
- ii. Delegates authority to the Strategic Director of Corporate & Community Services to undertake all necessary negotiations to enter into a CPO Indemnity Agreement with Sorbon Estates Limited, the developer of Chapel Arches.
- iii. Following completion of the CPO Indemnity Agreement above, delegates authority to the Strategic Director of Corporate & Community Services to proceed with preparations for the making of the CPO (as described in paragraph 2.8 of this report) in parallel with discussions and negotiations for the acquisition of property by agreement.
- iv. Endorses a subsequent report being brought to full Council making the case for a CPO.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place on items 6-8 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act

| The meeting, which began at 2.00 pm, finished at 2.44 pm | |
|----------------------------------------------------------|----------|
| | CHAIRMAN |
| | DATE |